HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE

April 8, 2015
8:35 a.m

8:35:45 AM
CALL TO ORDER
Co-Chair Thonpson called the House Finance Commttee
nmeeting to order at 8:35 a.m
VEMBERS PRESENT
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Co-Chair
Representati ve Steve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Representati ve Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair
Represent ati ve Bryce Edgnon
Representative Les Gara
Representative Lynn Gattis
Representative David Quttenberg
Representative Scott Kawasaki
Representative Cathy Minoz
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Tanm e WI son
VEVMBERS ABSENT
None
ALSO PRESENT
Val eri e Davidson, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Health and
Soci al Ser vi ces; Jon  Sherwood, Deputy  Conmm ssi oner,
Medicaid and Health Care Policy, Departnent of Health and
Soci al Services; Becky Hultberg, Senior Vice President and
Chi ef Executive Oficer, Al aska State Hospital and Nursing

Hone Association; Albert Wall, Di rector, D vision of
Behavi or al Heal t h, Depart ment of Health and Soci al
Servi ces; David Teal, Director, Legi sl ative Finance
Di vi si on.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Mar gar et Br odi e, Director, Division of Health Care
Servi ces, Departnent of Health and Social Services.

SUMVARY

House Fi nance Conmittee 1 04/08/15 8:35 A M



HB 148 MVEDI CAL ASSI STANCE COVERACE, REFORM

HB 148 was HEARD and HELD in conmmttee for
further consideration.

8:36: 28 AM

#hb148
HOUSE BI LL NO. 148

"An  Act relating to nedical assistance reform
nmeasur es; relating to eligibility for nmedi ca
assi stance coverage; relating to nmedical assistance
cost contai nnent neasures by the Departnent of Health
and Social Services; and providing for an effective
date."

Representative WIlson wanted to understand how the provider
tax woul d work and how nuch revenue the tax woul d generate.

VALERI E DAVI DSON, COWM SSI ONER, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND
SOCI AL SERVI CES, explained that the provider tax provision
required the Departnment of Health and Social Services
(DHSS) to reconmend a provider tax appropriate for Al aska.
The legislation mandated the departnent to wutilize an
i ndependent third party to analyze provider taxes in other
states and neet wth providers and stakeholders to
acconplish the nmandate. She detailed that other states
exenpted small providers from a tax in favor of taxing
hospital and nursing honmes based on their entire revenue
and not solely on Medicaid receipts. Al aska was one of the
few states that did not tax providers. The |Ilegislature
woul d receive a report on the provider tax recomrendation

Additional legislation would be required in order to
i npl enent a provider tax.

Representative WIson wondered why the state would initiate
a provider tax and how the revenue woul d be spent.

Comm ssi oner Davidson voiced that Alaska was actually the
only state in the country that did not collect a provider
tax. In light of the budget difficulties, the tax was
proposed as a way to continue to provide programs and
services. She believed that the providers should contribute
by having "skin in the gane.” Many other business in
Al aska were taxed.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 2 04/08/15 8:35 A M



Representative WIson announced that the provider tax was
not related to Medicaid expansion and could be inplenented
regardl ess of expansion.

Comm ssi oner Davidson responded in the affirmative. She
added that a state was able to inplenment a provider tax at
any time as long as the tax conplied wth federa
regul ations and the | egislature chose to enact a tax.

Representative WIlson felt that Medicaid and Medicare
under pai d providers and the tax was unfair.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked whether a healthcare provider tax
woul d only be levied on for profit providers.

Comm ssi oner Davidson answered that the departnent would
ask the third party provider to review how other states
levied the tax. She shared that sone states levied a
provider tax on both for profit and non-profit providers.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked how nmuch of Al aska's hospital and
nursing hone care were for profit versus non-profit
busi nesses.

8:43: 02 AM

JON SHERWOOD, DEPUTY COWM SSI ONER, MEDI CAI D AND HEALTH CARE
POLI CY, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES; responded
that nost of the hospitals in Alaska were non-profit
facilities. He expounded that Al aska Regional Hospital was
a for profit facility and was aware of only one private
nursing home facility located in Anchorage.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked whether it was fair to assune that
a provider tax would cover non-profits in order to raise
enough revenue.

M. Sherwood responded that a broad based tax woul d have to
i ncl ude non-profits.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er declared that federal law placed a limt
on the anobunt a provider tax could inpose. He asked whet her
the cap was 6 percent.

M. Sherwood replied in the affirmative.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 04/08/15 8:35 A M



Vi ce- Chair Saddl er asked how much a 6 percent provider tax
would raise on for profit and non-profit providers in the
st at e.

M. Sherwood did not know the answer but offered to provide
an estimate.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked whether the provider tax would
raise enough to <cover the state's share of Medicaid
expansi on.

M. Sherwood did not know but would provide the
i nformati on.

MARGARET BRODI E, DI RECTCR, DIVISSON OF HEALTH CARE
SERVI CES, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVICES (via
tel econference), replied that she also did not have the
i nformation but would provide it to the conmttee.

Co-Chair Neuman wanted verification that Al aska was the
only state without a provider tax.

Comm ssi oner Davi dson responded in the affirmative.

Co-Chair Neuman remenbered that a tax was levied on
Medicaid patients who utilized hospital services and was
reinbursed back to the state to cover the hospital costs
for non-covered patient's enmergency roomvisits.

Comm ssi oner Davidson explained that a provider tax would
be levied on a hospitals' entire revenue base. Currently,
the state taxed for profit hospitals and the taxes were
factored into the rates charged to the patients. O her
states inplenented provider taxes as a neans to fund
Medi cai d expansi on.

Co- Chair Neunman conmented that he was trying to follow the
tax. He asked how a 6 percent tax would flow through the
system

M. Sherwood replied that the tax revenue would be
deposited into the state's general fund. He el aborated that
the cost to the provider would be factored into the
Medicaid rates. Wien Medicaid reinbursed the provider the
cost of the tax to the provider would be included in the
paynent. The federal governnment capped a provider tax
because it paid the Medicaid portion of the tax via

House Fi nance Conmmittee 4 04/08/15 8:35 A M



reinbursenent. The I|imt was a way to avoid states
purposely inflating the federal match rate.

Co- Chair Neuman requested hearing expert testinony fromthe
hospi tal associ ati on.

Representative Gara announced that w thout a provider tax,
i npl ementati on of Medicaid expansion was estimated to save
the state $6.6 million in the first year and increase to
$20 million each year for the next five years and totaled
over $100 mllion in state savings. He asked for
verification.

Comm ssioner Davidson responded in the affirmative and
added that in the out years the projected savings were
actually $24.5 million per year.

Representative Gara pointed out that admnistrative costs
for expansion would be approximately $2 mllion in the
first year. The costs would be split between the Al aska
Mental Health Trust Authority (AVHTA) and the federal
governnent. He heard concerns from sone |egislators about
who woul d fund adm nistrative costs in succeeding years. He
opined that the state gained financially from expansion in
state savings. He wondered whether the provider tax
proposal was put forward as a response to concerns over
adm ni strative costs.

Comm ssi oner Davi dson confirmed his assunption.

Representative Gara notified the commttee that his wfe
was enployed at Providence Hospital. He shared that even
t hough Providence Hospital was a non-profit it was
extrenely profitable and some years subsidized other
state's hospitals. He asked whether the provider tax rates
woul d be lower for hospitals that nmade | ess revenue.

Conmmi ssi oner Davi dson confirmed his statenent.

Representative Gara related that HB 148 did not establish a
provider tax on page 2. The legislation provided for the
devel opnment of a provider tax that would be reconmmended to
the legislature to enact. He asked for verification.

Conmi ssi oner Davidson affirnmed his statenent. She indicated

that in order to inplement a provider tax |egislation was
required.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 04/08/15 8:35 A M



Representative Gara asked how nany other states had a
provi der tax.

Comm ssioner Davidson replied that 49 other states had a
provi der tax.

Representative Pruitt referred to page 9 of the bill and
asked whet her the provision was expandi ng Denali Kid Care.

Comm ssi oner Davi dson responded that HB 158 did not expand
eligibility. She elaborated that a provision under the
Affordable Care Act (ACA) changed the way states used
"incone disregards"” for determining Medicaid eligibility.
The ACA established a new rule called, "nodified adjusted
gross inconme" that set disregards aside and required states
to calculate the incone disregard and adjust incone after
the disregard versus before the disregard, but was
essentially "the same nunber.” Eligibility was not
i ncreased, the bill nerely reflected the new ACA
requi renent. She added that questions arose regarding why
the ACA changed the nodified adjusted gross income. She
explained that as the federally facilitated marketplace
[ health insurance] plans were developed the eligibility
change to using nodified adjusted gross incone for
determining eligibility for both Medicaid and a marketpl ace
plan subsidy was commonly required as a way to nake
det erm nati ons easier.

Representative Pruitt stated that nodified adjusted gross
income was not always different than adjusted gross incone.
He cited eligibility percentages fromthe bill and inquired
how the state determ ned that 25 percent for pregnant wonen
and 28 percent for children under the age of 19 was correct
and not just a random nunber that separated the difference
between nodified and adjusted gross inconme. He asked
whet her data was used to support the nunbers.

M. Sherwood informed the conmttee that the federa
government performed a survey called, "The Survey of |ncone
and Pr ogram Parti ci pation” (Sl PP) whi ch provi ded
denographic information about the types of expenditures
that applied to incone disregards specific to each state.
Cal culations for each state were made to determ ne what
inpact the disregard loss was and provide an adjustnent.
Each state was required to either use its own data or the
survey data. The state accepted the survey's adjustnent
with one nodifier to account for the permanent fund

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 04/08/15 8:35 A M



dividend incone disregard. He shared that nopst states
utilized the SIPP conversion process and Al aska used the
SIPP plus one that included the permanent fund dividend
disregard. He offered that Alaska used the process to
formulate the Denali Kid Care eligibility nunmbers in the
bill. The disregards inpacted each eligibility category
slightly different than the previous calculations, which
explained the two different eligibility percentages between
pregnant wormen and chil dren

8:57:01 AM

Representative Pruitt wanted to be <clear that t he
departnment did not anticipate an increase due to the
change.

M. Sherwood responded in the affirmative. He furthered
that the required nodified adjusted gross incone standards
were currently in effect. The nodification required a
statute change to refl ect t he required federa
recal cul ati on of adjusted incone.

Representative Pruitt relayed a story about a young wonan
suffering with a brain tunor who was forced to pay $750
out - of - pocket to see a specialist who was turned away after
a 15 mnute consultation. He read that Al askans paid three
times the national average for a primary care visit. He
expressed frustration over the situation. The woman was not
on Medicaid and he wanted assurance that a simlar
situation would not happen with Medicaid providers. He
noted the bill's references to paynent reform He wanted an
outline of what paynment reform entailed. He wondered
whet her paynent reform would cause soneone in a simlar
situation to pay nore.

Comm ssi oner Davi dson expressed concern that the woman was
not getting the care she needed. She explained Al aska
utilized a fee for service nodel. She provided an exanple
of soneone visiting a doctor multiple times for strep
throat. The provider was paid for each visit under the fee
for service nodel. Paynment reform provided opportunities to
change the fee for service system She noted paying for
out cones as an alternative; the doctor would  be
incentivized to figure out why the patient was repeatedly
getting strep throat and prevent anot her out br eak
therefore, reducing the nunber of future visits. She
restated that Alaska was a fee for service state and the

House Fi nance Conmmittee 7 04/08/15 8:35 A M



departnment intended to change the dynam c. The departnent
wanted to reform Medicaid not only for expansion but for
everyone. She enphasized that the way the state delivered
care was not sustainable and change was inperative. The
paynent reform |anguage in the bill was purposely broad.
She relayed that sonme had suggested a switch to a nanaged
care system She contended that nanaged care was devel oped
in the 1970's and was an outdated system The rest of the
country was inplenenting different types of paynment nodels,
i.e., patient centered nedical hone, super utilizers,
account abl e care organi zations, etc. New ways of paying for
and delivering healthcare were being tested by the CM
| nnovation Center. The state was interested in inplenmenting
an innovative type of paynent reform She noted that one of
the challenges the state had was a small popul ati on spread
over a |arge geographic area. She exenplified telenedicine
as one nmethod to extend the healthcare reach w thout
transporting the patient for service when appropriate. The
best paynment reform opportunities would exam ne how the
state delivered appropriate care and how it was paid for.

Representative Pruitt voiced that the state's healthcare
system did not enforce cost control and that nmany providers
favored expansion because of that. He asked how to avoid
hi gher costs getting shifted to non-Medicaid patients if
the state "started to narrow the scope of paynent". He
suggested that nmaybe the state needed Medical reform rather
than Medicaid reform He felt that nedical costs in the
state were "out of <control” due to price gouging. He
reiterated his concern that inplenenting cost controls for
Medicaid would shift higher costs to other payers and
wondered how to prevent that scenario with Medicaid paynent
reform

Comm ssi oner Davi dson responded that currently many of the
providers were shifting costs to cover unconpensated care.
She detailed that other states such as Arizona that adopted
Medi cai d expansi on reduced their unconpensated care costs
by 30 percent in the first year of expansion. She
enphasi zed that the state had to work with providers and
could not inplenent reforns al one because the state needed
providers to offer services for the agreed upon price. The
department rel eased an RFP (request for proposal) to hire a
third party contractor to examne what type of reform was
happening in other states and she intended to include
stakehol ders in the discussion. She relayed from persona
experience that she wanted to see the doctor engage in

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 04/08/15 8:35 A M



healthy outcomes by asking a patient how they can work
together to inprove other health concerns. She wanted to
figure out how providers and patients can jointly own
health outcomes. She revealed that providers supported
paynent reform as long as they had the opportunity to
participate in the process. Providers were aware of the
severe budget chall enges ahead for the state and recogni zed
the need "to do things differently.” She thought that the
budget chal |l enges inspired innovati on.

Representative Pruitt referred to a report that revealed
the 300 specialists in Alaska that collectively billed over
$1 billion. He deduced that a specialist provider would be
reticent to work with the state on reform He asked how the
state would engage the providers to "buy in" to reform and
in sonme cases "be the bad guy" and how the state would
"bridge the gap."

Comm ssi oner Davidson responded that the first step was
sinply to try. She reported that the state was very clear
with providers that the current system was not sustai nable
and if a provider wanted to continue providing services for
Medicaid or individuals' reformhad to occur. The state was
a significant purchaser of healthcare in a variety of
settings; Medicaid and state enployees and retiree health
plans. The state was in a good bargaining position. She
contended that the state was currently in a position to
coordi nate collective negotiations with providers on behalf
of Medicaid and the insurance plans.

9:11: 34 AM

Vice-Chair Saddler asked what the primary elenents of
paynment reform were.

Conmi ssi oner Davidson defined that paynent reform analyzed
the ability to provide better quality service and provide
the service at |ower costs. Paynment reform was focused on
val ue; the value for services provided.

Vice-Chair Saddler wanted a better definition of what
paynment reform was.

M. Sherwood indicated that paynent reform was not just one
thing. He added that several options were available and
were not mutually exclusive. One option bundl ed paynents at
different levels in a variety of ways. He provided

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 04/08/15 8:35 A M



exanples: bundle all paynments related to a knee surgery,
bundle for "larger episodes of service" such as a
hospitalization, or bundle paynents even nore globally for
account abl e care or gani zati ons and comunity care
or gani zati ons. He highlighted that typically, paynment
reform involved a paynent nethod that provided incentives
for quality called, "pay for performance.” Specific
standards were expected of the provider, and if net or
exceeded different paynent |evels from base paynents to
enhanced paynent s wer e awar ded. He conveyed t hat
accountable and community care organi zations were entities
that "conglonerated" providers and agreed to share the
benefits from inproved performance. He provided an exanple
of an agreenent between a hospital and community physicians
to enhance primary care and reduce energency room
expenditures. The state or the payer could nonitor the
outcones or the accountable or conmmunity care providers
coul d nonitor thensel ves.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked about the difference between
accountable care versus nanaged care organizations. He
asked whether accountable care organizations existed in
Al aska.

M. Sherwood replied that each nodel had a |egal
definition. He explained that a nanaged care organization
operated nmuch like an insurance conpany and attenpted to

achieve savings through utilization oversight and control
by negotiating favorable rates wth providers in its
network. An accountabl e care organization was conprised of
providers that collectively carried out utilization control
and oversight and paynment distribution thenselves wthout
an outside entity.

Vice-Chair Saddl er asked whether there was an accountabl e
care organi zation in Al aska.

M. Sherwood replied in the negative.

Vice-Chair Saddler wanted to know what the inpacts of
Medi caid expansion would be on Denali Kid Care (SCH P

program .

M. Sherwood responded that expansion would not i npact
Denali Kid Care.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 04/08/15 8:35 A M



Vi ce-Chair Saddler referenced the claim that 4000 new | obs
woul d be created in the state through Medicaid expansion
He wanted to know what the claimwas based on.

Comm ssi oner Davidson responded that the information was
derived from an independent study by the organization
Nort hern Econom cs. The organi zation perfornmed an econonic
i mpact study on the infusion of approximately $1 billion of
new federal dollars flowng into the state. She offered
that not all of the jobs would be in healthcare.

Vi ce- Chai r Saddl er asked whether the study's concl usion was
based on the infusion of $1 billion into the econony
equal ed 4000 | obs.

Comm ssi oner Davidson indicated that the 4000 figure was
the result of the analysis and took the m d-range between a
hi gh and | ow nunber.

Vi ce- Chai r Saddl er asked whether the study was avail abl e.

Cormmi ssi oner Davidson answered in the affirmative and woul d
distribute the study to the commttee.

Representative Gara commented that Al aska had the highest
costs for nedical care in the country and the highest
increases in costs annually. He stated that the situation
"had nothing to do wth Medicaid expansion” and could not
be attributed to any past admnistrations. He nmaintained
that that there had been a nunber of proposals from past
governors and governor's comm ssions that were not acted on
by the legislature. He understood that Al aska was one of
the nost generous states that allowed provider billing at
the top range of costs at the 80th percentile. He shared
that other states endorsed the nedian costs. He noted that
the informati on was presented in every prior admnistration
and the legislature chose to ignore action. He asked
whet her DHSS was aware of the rule and if it could be
changed in regulation or by statute.

M. Sherwood responded that the agency only establisheda
very small percentage of the Mdicaid rates and was not
aware of how the state insurance payers established rates.
Medicaid rates were established from the Medicare fornmula
with an added adjustnent. He nentioned that nursing hones
and hospital rates were based on a cost-based rate that was
facility specific and paid at the facility's projected

House Fi nance Committee 11 04/08/15 8:35 A M



costs. He renenbered that the nmedian rate was utilized when
pricing new durable nedical equipnent. He would provide
additional information about when the departnment applied
t he nedi an rate.

Representative Gara announced that he had a great deal of
respect for the prior comm ssioner [Bill Streuer] of DHSS
He stated that Al aska had been one of the few state's that
did not cover lung transplants for cystic fibrosis. He
related that a citizen from the Matanuska-Susitna Valley
asked Rep. Gara for help to obtain a lung transplant. He
worked with the previous conmm ssioner and currently the
state provided the coverage. He warned that in an effort to
achieve savings, "waivers could not be stripped wthout
human consequences.”

9: 23: 28 AM

Co-Chair Neuman requested information regarding a hospita
t ax.

BECKY HULTBERG SENI OR VI CE PRESI DENT AND CHI EF EXECUTI VE
OFFI CER, ALASKA  STATE HOSPI TAL AND NURSING HOMVE
ASSQOCI ATI ON, voiced that the association conducted research
about provider taxes and provided information. She
expl ai ned that 49 states had a provider tax because the tax
was used as a nmechanism to |everage federal participation
to increase provider rates and allow a tax to obtain
Medicaid match funding. She deened that the tax was a
potential nmechanism to help the state and not harm
providers. She detailed that a provider tax helped in two
ways. First, a provider tax Ileveraged federal di sh
paynents. She elaborated that provider taxes |everaged an
addi tional disproportionate share for hospital paynents
from Medicaid, known as "dish" paynments. She defined that

"Di sh" payments were authorized for hospitals that
performed a high percentage of wunconpensated care. A
provi der t ax can al so | avage addi ti onal f eder al

rei nbursenent when the Medicaid rate was |ower than the
Medicare rate, which nost likely applied to Al aska for
i npatient services. Therefore, an Alaskan provider tax
could be enployed to |everage additional federal matching
funds up to the Medicare rate. She pointed out that the
mechani sm was conplex and required additional consulting
assistance to determ ne whether provider taxes would be
beneficial to the state and positive to providers. She
informed the conmttee that the answer was not known yet

House Fi nance Committee 12 04/08/15 8:35 A M



but the association thought that the issue was worthy of
further exploration.

Representative WIson thought that Medicaid was paying nore
t han Medi care.

MVs. Hul tberg replied that the statement applied to
outpatient care. She suspected the reverse was true for
inpatient care. Medicaid is a relatively better payer in
Al aska than other states. The association was surprised to
di scover that inpatient Medicaid rates were likely |ower
than the Medicare rate.

Representative W/Ison understood that the provider tax was
unwor kable if Medicaid was paying nore than Medicare. She
stated that a provider tax would be based on all of the
provider's revenues and the tax would be levied on
providers that did not accept Mdicaid and Medicare. She
asked for nore details on the provider tax.

Ms. Hultberg responded that there were 19 different types
of providers that could be taxed under the federal program
Typically the tax was only levied on hospitals and nursing
homes and was al so known as a "hospital” tax. She expounded
that federal regulation required that the tax was broadly
applied. Al providers within a certain category had to be
taxed whether the provider accepted Medicaid or not.
However, subcategories were allowed. She provided the
exanple within the hospital category. She explained that a
subcategory of hospitals <called "prospective paynent
systenf hospitals, which were |arge versus "critica
access" hospital, which were snmall and less able to pay the
t ax.

Representative Edgnon suggested that iif the departnent
estimated revenue expected from a provider tax the figure
woul d be "highly speculative" until the association's study
was conpl et ed.

Ms. Hultberg agreed with the statenent. She expl ai ned that
many vari abl es existed for the manner that the tax could be
| evied and subgroups could be taxed and would be highly
specul ative at this tinme.

Representative Quttenberg spoke in regards to circular

billing. He observed that the tax was used to capture
federal funds and "at the end of the day everyone raised

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 04/08/15 8:35 A M



rates because the tax increased costs. He wanted to know
who ultimately paid for circular billing.

Ms. Hul tberg answered that through matching federal dollars
the cost of the tax was offset and was net neutral for the
facility therefore, rates were not increased. She added
that if it was true that costs to providers increased then
the costs would be allocated to other payers where the rate
was not fi xed.

Representative Guttenberg provided a reform scenario where
the savings were not evenly distributed to all entities and
providers raised rates which ultinmtely negated any savings
in the system He wondered whether there were guarantees
that rates would not be increased with inplenentation of a
provi der tax.

Ms. Hultberg agreed and enphasized the inportance of
thoroughly studying the issue before inplenmentation. She
mai ntained that it would not be beneficial if a provider
tax resulted in increased rates. She believed there was an
opportunity to exam ne the issue because it was possible a
provider tax would be a net positive for the state and net
neutral for providers.

Representative Quttenberg asked the departnent to provide
the legal definitions for mnmanaged care and accountable
care. He referred to billing reform and described issues
with repeated patient billing until clainm were processed
and thought it was onerous for the patient and costly to
the system He asked whether the departnent figured out how
to streamine the billing process.

M. Sherwood enpathized with the issue. He detailed that
providers did not bill Medicaid recipients, the state was
billed and providers accepted paynent from the state. The
reconciliation was between the state and the providers and
Medicaid patients were not billed. He added that the
departnment had its own challenges with individuals that had
other insurance. The state contracted with a conpany to
hel p recover third-party paynents.

9:37:14 AM

Representative Cuttenberg referred to his wfe' s nedical
experience with Medicare and his state insurance and the
difficulties with billing from providers. He stated that he

House Fi nance Committee 14 04/08/15 8:35 A M



had received bills. He referred to a charge nmster that
providers wused for billing. He asked how hospitals and
providers used the charge master and how it fit into
reform

M. Sherwood responded that the state did not have access
to provider's rate schedules and noved away from the usua
and customary charge approach. The departnent did not set
rates based on what providers charged and utilized a
separate nethodol ogy. The departnment was aware of what a
provider normally charged for a service since it was
included on the billing claim but had no need for the
information. A condition of Medicaid was that the provider
accepted a Medicaid rate as paynment in full.

Representative Gara stated that the collective goal was to
curb healthcare costs for everyone in the state. He rel ayed
that Al aska Regional Hospital's chief executive officer
deduced that wth the additional revenue from Medicaid
expansion, the hospital <could establish an on-canpus
medical clinic and treat patients who went to the energency
room (ER) for non-energency care. The cost savings would
spread through the system He asked whether the scenario
was "a way to bend the cost curve" through Medicaid
expansion and what was the potential for clinics beyond
Al aska Regi onal Hospit al

Comm ssioner Davidson answered in the affirmative and
stated the opportunity existed for other facilities. She
reported that the enmergency room was legally required to
provide services, therefore individuals wth no other
resources for medical services go to the energency room

typically after an illness progressed. Once nore people had
access to healthcare the state could help direct patients
to t he appropriate provi ders. She ref erenced t he

Superutilizer Program and gave credit to her predecessor
WIlliam Streur, for inplenenting cost saving neasures. She
offered that the superutilizer program was designed for
individuals wth excessive use of the ER Currently the
program was voluntary but HB 148 would establish it in
statute. She explained that when an individual wth
multiple ER visits was flagged in the system as a
superutilizer a contractor would contact the person

di scuss the condition, recommended the appropriate primary
care provider and followed up wth the patient. She
enphasi zed the enthusiastic response for the program 2000
people had voluntarily enrolled. She noted that other

House Fi nance Conmmittee 15 04/08/15 8:35 A M



providers indicated that they would like to engage in the
sane type of involved patient care.

Representative Gara reiterated his question regarding
Al aska Regional Hospital's plan for building a clinic on
t he same canpus. He asked whether the plan would be allowed
under federal |aw

Commi ssi oner Davidson answered in the affirmative. She
remarked that the ER at the Al aska Native Medical Center
had a simlar programin place.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked if an individual who went to the
ER for treatnent could decline to be sidetracked.

M. Sherwood responded that a patient could always decline
care with the exception of involuntary commtnents. The
hospital was required to triage and stabilize the patient,
once stabilized the hospital fulfilled it requirenent. He
was uncertain at what clinical point the hospital could
legally relinquish care.

Vice-Chair Saddler wanted to clarify that there would not
be any obligation to force the patient into primary care
treatnment if the patient objected.

Comm ssi oner Davi dson pointed out that once the patient was
triaged and stabilized and was referred to primary care the
hospital was absolved from further treatnment and the
patient could decline care from a clinic or alternate
provi der.

9:49: 44 AM

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er asked whether a healthcare provider was
obligated to accept a Medicaid patient.

M. Sherwood responded that there was no obligation.

Vice-Chair Saddler asked if the departnment analyzed the
effects of expanding Medicaid on the recipients of
Medi care. He shared concerns that a higher population of
Medicaid recipients would crowd out Medicare patients at
clinics.

M. Sherwood reported that the departnent had not done any
formal anal ysi s.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 16 04/08/15 8:35 A M



Vice-Chair Saddler asked whether the 1issue had been
di scussed and if so, list some providers that engaged in
t he di scussi ons.

M. Sherwood responded that the departnment engaged in
di scussions with provider organizations who felt they could
neet the anticipated expanded demand. He reported that the
issue was discussed with the Primary Care Association,
Behavioral Health, and Tribal Behavioral Health as a
partial 1list.

Vice-Chair Saddler confirnmed that the departnment had not
anal yzed the effect of adding 20,000 nore Medicaid patients
on the rest of the healthcare system

M . Sherwood responded in the affirmative that no
quantitative anal ysis was perforned.

Representative Edgnon remarked that the discussion on
Medi caid expansion and reform was far reaching. He wanted
to know what the role of the Al aska Health Care Comm ssion
(AHCC) was in Medicaid expansi on and whether DHSS relied on
t he conm ssion for any data.

Comm ssi oner Davidson responded that the conm ssion had
provi ded hel pful information on paynent reform and factors
that contributed to the high costs of Medicaid in Al aska.
However she shared that the conmssion's budget was
conpletely cut and woul d not be a resource noving forward.

Co-Chair Thonpson directed attention to the fiscal notes
He referenced the new DHSS fiscal note allocated to the
Behavi or al Health Treatnment and Recovery Gants, OB
(O fice of Managenent and Budget) conponent nunber 3099.

M. Sherwood explained that the fiscal note reduced genera
fund grant funding for behavioral health treatnment and
recovery grants. Medi caid expansion would cover the
behavioral health grant services for Medicaid recipients
currently receiving the grants. The reduction increased in
the out years as the conversion from grant to Medicaid
increased. Additionally, beginning in FY 2018 a 1915 (i)
[ Home and Community Based Services] option becane avail abl e
that provided home and conmmunity based services for
behavi or al health that further reduced funding for
behavi oral health treatnment grants, which would be replaced
by Medi caid doll ars.

House Fi nance Committee 17 04/08/15 8:35 A M



Vi ce-Chair Saddler asked when the savings began for the
1915 | option.

M. Sherwood replied that the savings began in FY 2018.

Vi ce-Chair Saddl er suggested it was a 2.5 year process from
i npl enentation of the 1915 (i) option and realized savings.

M. Sherwood stated the process would take 2 years.

Representative WIson asked what the process would be for
t he individual receiving the nmental health grants.

M. Sherwood answered that the grants services were an
option and waivers were not required. However, a person
must nmeet a functional standard inpairnment determ ned by
the state to establish the need for the option. The
i ndividual would participate in an assessnent process
simlar to the waiver process.

Representative WIson asked whether the 1915 (i) program
was an option the state could decline.

M. Sherwood concurred that the program was optional.

Comm ssi oner Davidson stated that the state currently paid
for and provided the service. Through the 1915 (i) option
the federal governnent paid 50 percent of the programs
cost.

Representative WIson requested actual figures for the
grant progranms and nunber of recipients being served. She
announced that sonme viewed the federal assistance as
opportunity while others thought that they were "nore
charges.” She wanted to nore thoroughly wunderstand the
grant prograns.

Co- Chai r Neuman announced that he wanted to find
opportunities to reduce the state's costs. He asked whet her
accepting the 1915 (i) option was dependent on accepting
Medi cai d expansi on.

Comm ssi oner Davidson answered that the option could be
pur sued w t hout expansion.

10: 00: 02 AM

House Fi nance Conmmittee 18 04/08/15 8:35 A M



Vice-Chair Saddler referenced the 1115 waivers and noted
that the waivers nust be renewed every 5 years and the
state was not conmtted to renewal. He wanted to know if
t he sane renewal option applied to the 1915(i) option.

M. Sherwood responded that the 1915 (i) options did not
have a simlar renewal period.

Vice-Chair Saddler wunderstood that 1115 waivers were
required to be budget neutral and asked if that applied to
the 1915 (i) option.

M. Sherwood answered in the negative.

Co- Chair Thonpson referred to the new DHSS fiscal note, OVB
conponent nunber 2665, allocated for the Behavioral Health
Adm ni stration.

M. Sherwood detailed that the fiscal note added one staff
position to work on the developnent, inplenentation, and
oversight of the 1915 (i) option. The anmount in the first
year was higher than the out years due to the cost of
addi ng the position. The 1915(i) option provided a federa
mat ch of 50 percent.

Representative WIson asked how many people one position
woul d serve

ALBERT WALL, DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF BEHAVIORAL HEALTH,
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES, expl ained that
the estimated nunber of recipients for the 1915 (i) option
was 1000. The oversi ght was needed for program approval and
the staff provided adm nistration of the program for the
provi der group that delivered the services.

Representative WIson wanted to know how nmuch work was
demanded of the additional staffer.

M. Wall articulated that there was one other staffer that
performed simlar work with other programs and that the
| oad woul d be divided out anobngst the staff.

Co- Chair Neuman believed that the fiscal note reveal ed that
the option qualified the state for 50 percent federal
mat ching funds and would pay for between $56 thousand and
$60 thousand of the staffs' annual wages with general funds
covering the remaining 50 percent. The state would save

House Fi nance Conmmittee 19 04/08/15 8:35 A M



between $5 nillion and $20 mllion in overall savings by
accepting 1915 (i) option.

Comm ssi oner Davidson stated that under a previous version
of the fiscal note that the savings were calculated at $3.5
mllion per year.

DAVI D  TEAL, DI RECTOR, LEG SLATI VE FI NANCE DI VI SI ON
notified the commttee that it was a standard policy not to
reflect increases in the out years for personal services.

Co-Chair Thonmpson noved to the new DHSS fiscal note,
conponent nunber of 2330, allocated for Catastrophic and
Chronic |11 ness Assistance.

M. Sherwood explained that the fiscal note served very |ow
income individuals with chronic conditions that did not
currently qualify for Medicaid. Medicaid expansion would
cover all of the individuals currently being served in the
program The fiscal note showed a reduction in general
funds that increased in the out years.

Co-Chair Neuman wondered whether the constituent with a
brain tunmor that Representative Pruitt referred to would
fall under the catastrophic category if she qualified under
poverty | evels.

M. Sherwood responded that the Chronic and Acute Medica
Assi stance (CAMA) program provided mai ntenance medications
with individuals for chronic conditions such as; nental
illness, hypertension, seizure disorders and were awaiting
for a disability determnation from the Social Security
Adm ni stration before they could qualify for Medicaid or
Medi care. Cancer was also covered but the benefit were
limted to physicians, drugs, and sone cancer therapies.

Co- Chair Neuman asked if the state currently provided CAVA
services and at what cost.

M. Sherwood stated that the state provided the services to
approximately 500 recipients at a cost to the state of
approximately $1.5 mllion annually in general funds.

10: 12: 09 AM

M. Teal clarified that many of the fiscal notes were
linked and that with Medicaid expansion the CAMA program

House Fi nance Conmmittee 20 04/08/15 8:35 A M



would go away. He explained that roughly half of the
general fund savings accounted for in the fiscal note
showed up as a Medicaid expense included in another
Medi caid fiscal note related to expansion

M. Sherwood stated that he anticipated that the CAMVA
reci pients would be covered under expansion by 100 percent
federal funds in the first year of expansion which dropped
to 90 percent in subsequent years. The general fund
increase in the out years would be much snmaller than under
the current 50/50 match.

Co-Chair Thonpson referred to the new DHSS fiscal note,
conponent nunber 242, allocated for Medical Assistance
Adm ni strati on.

M. Sherwood elaborated that the fiscal note contained
adm nistrative costs for Medicaid expansion and reform
The costs added four positions that eventually grew to six.
One of the positions was needed to inplenent the 1115
tribal denonstration waiver and the other positions were
associated with Medicai d expansi on.

Co-Chair Neuman thought that the AWHTA would contribute
funding in the first year of expansion. He asked for
clarification.

M. Sherwood pointed to the MITAAR fund source on the
fiscal note and explained that covered one expansion
posi tion.

Co-Chair Thonmpson noved to the new DHSS fiscal note,
conponent nunber 2696, allocated to Rate Review.

M. Sherwood expounded that the fiscal note was related to
costs associated wth Mdicaid reform One provision
required a denonstration project focused on coordinated
care that included a global paynent fee structure. The
costs reflected the need to contract with an actuary to
assist in determning appropriate pricing and paynent. The
bul k of the work would occur in the first year with ongoing
consulting work for nmonitoring the rates.

Vice-Chair Saddler cited a reference to "managed care" in

the third paragraph of the fiscal note analysis. He noted
the comm ssioner's previous allusion to managed care as an

House Fi nance Committee 21 04/08/15 8:35 A M



old nodel that should not be pursued and asked for a
reconciliation of the opposing positions.

Comm ssioner Davidson replied that the "managed care
system referenced in the fiscal note related to managi ng
the care of a popul ation versus a managed care organi zation
as a specific legal structure.

Co- Chair Neuman asked whether general fund expenses for
expansion could be supplanted by provider tax revenues if
Medi cai d Expansi on was i npl enent ed.

M. Sherwood thought that the answer lied in the
| egislative authority to retroactively appropriate funds.

Comm ssi oner Davidson rem nded the conmttee that separate
| egi sl ation was required to i npose a provider tax.

Vice-Chair Saddler referred to paragraph three of the
fiscal note analysis and wanted to better understand what a
managed care system that included a global paynment
structure invol ved.

M. Sherwood indicated that the |anguage was referring to
an accountable care or comunity care organization that
operated in a geographic region where providers cane
t oget her.

Comm ssi oner Davidson specified that some kind of gl obal
paynent nodels enacted via fees based per nenber per nonth
or based upon disease burden, disease conplexity, or
patient conplexity were exanples. An actuary would assist
in figuring out a nore conplex paynment nodel fee structure.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler wanted to ensure all stakeholders would
be involved in the inplementation of an accountable care
or gani zat i on.

M. Teal clarified that the first paragraph of the fiscal
note analysis estinmated the cost of the consultant's
contract at $175 thousand. He assuned that the departnent
woul d absorb the cost and asked for confirmation.

Conmi ssi oner Davidson answered in the affirmati ve.

#
ADJ OURNVENT

House Fi nance Committee 22 04/08/15 8:35 A M



10: 22: 32 AM
The neeting was adjourned at 10:22 a.m

House Fi nance Conmmittee 23 04/08/15 8:35 A M



